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)
Commission de l'Énergie
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Ontario

RP-2001-0041

NOTICE OF APPLICATION

LEAVE TO LEASE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION ASSETS
LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF PORT COLBORNE

An Application has been filed on August 20, 2001 with the Ontario Energy Board (the

"Boerd") by The Corporation of the City. of Port Colbörne (the "Municipality), Port

Colborne Hydro Inc. ("Port Colborne Hydro"), Canadian Niagara Power 

Inc. ("CNPI")
and Canadian Niag.ara Power Company Limited. ("CNP") seeking an order of the Board

granting leave for Port Colborne Hydro to lease to CNPI the .electric distribution 

assets
of Port Colborne Hydro, located within the City of Port Colborne, under the terms and

conditions of a Lease Agreement for ten (10) years. The Application also seeks related

orders from the Board.

Copies of the Application are available for inspection at the Board's office$, at the head
office of CNPI/CNP, and at the offices of the Municipality at the addresses indicated
below.

. If you wish to participate in this proceeding you must make a written submission to the

Board Secretary within 14 calendar days of the publication of this Notice. Information

on how to partcipate may be.obtained by callng the Board's Customer Service Centre

toll-free at 1-877-632-2727, by email at Boardsec~oeb.gov.on.ca or from the frequently

asked questions (FAQ) section of the Board's Web site at ww.oeb.gov.on.ca. A copy

of your submission must also be sent to the Municipality/port Colborne Hydro and to

CNPI/CNP. .
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Ontario Energy Board
2300 Yonge Street
26th Floor
Toronto, ON M4P 1 E4

Atln: Paul B. Pudge
Board Secretary

Toll free:

Fax:
1..888-632-6273
416-440-7656

Canadian Niagara Power Inc.!
Canadian Niagara Power Company
Limited
1130 Bertie Street

. P.O. Box 1218
Fort Erie, ON L2A 5Y2

Attn: Timothy B. Curtis

Vice-President Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

Tel: . 905-871-0330

Fax: 905-871-8676

DATED AT Toronto October 2,2001

- 2-

The Corporation of the Cit of Port
Colborne I Port Colborne Hydro Inc.
66 Charlotte Street
Port Colborne, ON L3K 3C8

Attn: L.C. Hunt

Director - Port Col borne Hydro Inc.

Tel: . (905) 835-0051

Fax: (905) 835-2969

ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

Pet r . O'Dell

As . tant Board Secretary
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APPLICATION FOR CANADIA NIAGAR POWER INC. TO

ACQUI A LEASEHOLD INTEREST IN
PORT COLBORN HYaO INC.

RP-2001-0041

RESPONSE TO NOVEMBER 27, 2001
BOAR STAFF INERROGATORY

J)ATE:J)ECEMBER 12,2001

INDEX

DESCRIPTION TAB

Response to November 27, 2001 Board Staf Interogatory . 1

PortCo1bome Hydro-Electrc Commssion Financial Report
(Unaudited) dated Februar 29,2000 (re: Question 1)

2

Excel workbook (re: Question 2) 3
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A Application for Canadian Niagara Power Inc. to
Acquire a Leasehold Interest in Port Colborne Hydro Inc.

RP-2001.0041
Response to November 27, 2001 Board Staff Interrogatory

Date:. December 11, 2001

Question 1:

With reference to section 1.3.4, provide the stub year financial results for Port Col borne
Hydro-Electric Commission for the period Januåry 1 to February.29, 2000.

Response:

Accompanying this response isacopy of the unaûditedfinancial statements of the Port
Col borne Hydro-Electric Commission for the months of January and February, 2000. (See

. Tab 2). The financial statements were reviewed by Grant Thornton LLP, Chartered
Accountants. A copy of the Grant Thornton LLP Review Engagement Report, dated April
7,2000, accompanies the financial statements.

Question 2:

With reference to section 1.3.5, the pro forma provided for CNPI based on
December 31, 2000 financial statements for the first year of the lease. The pro formas
indicate several adjustments in the first year of the lease. to account for differences i.IÌ tax
status (as of December 31,2000) of CNPI and Port Col borne Hydro, the need to rebuild
the working capital and . other factors. Also, most of the distribution assets, and the
associated depreciation, wil remain with Port Col borne Hydro. As a result, the projection t.
is for a net loss for CNPI for the first year of the lease of $148,000. Please provide pro
formas for years 2 through 5 of the lease for CNPI (assuming that costs related to the start-
up of the lease have been covered in previous years).

Response:

An Excel workbook containing the following pro forma statements for CNPI, fòr years 2002
to 2006, accompanies this response (see Tab 3):

· Forecast i ncome Statements
· Forecast Statement of Changes in Financial Position
· Forecast Balance Sheet

Page 1 of 2
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Applie;ation for Canadian Niagara Power Inc. to
Acquire a Leasehold Interest in Port Col borne Hydro Inc.

RP-2001-0041 .
Response to November 27, 2001 Board Staff Interrogatory

Date: December 5, 2001

Question 3:

With reference to sections 3.1.1 and 3.1.2, provide inforrnation on Canadian Niagara
Power Company Limited's generation capacity and market share in Ontario.

Response:

Section 3.1.1

The generation operating capacity of Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited ("CNP"),
in the Province of Ontario, is 74.6 MW at its Rankine Generating Station located at Niagara
Falls. This capacity wil remain unchanged after the completion of this transaction. About
40% of the generating capacity of CNP is currently being used to supply the 14,800
customers of Canadian Niagara Power Inc. ("CNPI") in Fort Erie. The remaining capacity
is currently being exported, although occasionally sales are made to Ontario Power
Generation Inc. This generation capacity is not subject to or affected by the lease
transaction.

The Port Colborne operations of CNPI wil derive the majority of its revenue from its
distribution assets. Thefeare no generation assets in Port Col borne owned by Port
Colborne Hydro Inc, CNP or CNPI nor do any such assets form part of the lease
transaction. Port Col borne Hydro Inc. wil not own any share or have any right to any share
of CNP's generation capacity. 1.
Section 3.1.2 .

The generation market share of CNP, in the Province of Ontario, is less than 0.3% of the
total Ontario market and 3.3% ofthe market share in the Niagara Region. This generation
market share wil remain unchanged after the completion of this transaction. .

::ODMA\PCDOCS\CCn274289\1
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Canadian Member Firm of
Grant Thornton International

Grant Thornton ~
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Port Colborne Hydro-Electric
Commission
February 29, 200
(Unaudited)
Financial Report
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Port Colborne Hydro-Electric
Commission
February 29, 2000
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Financial Report
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Grant Thornton LLP
Chartere Accountants

Caadian Member Firm of
Grant Thomton Interntional

Grat Thornton ~.,.

Review Engagement Report

To the Commissioners, Members of Council, Inhabitnt and
Ratepayers of the Corporation of the Cit of Port Colbome

. We have reviewed the balance sheet of the Port Colbome HydroElecric Commission as at
February 29, 2000 and the statements of operations and equit and cash flow for the tw months then
ended. Our review was made in accordance wi generally accepted standards for review
engagements and accoi'ingly consisted primarily of enquiry, analytical procedures and c;iscussion
related to information supplied to us by management.

A review does not constitute an audit anc consequentl we do not expres an audit opinion .on thesefinancial statements. .
Based on our review, nothing ha come to our attention that causes us to believe that these financial
statements are not, in all material respes, in accordance with generally accepted accuntingprinciples. .. .

Port Colbome, Ontario
April 7, 2000

~ .76-tf/Chartered Accountants ~

P.O. Box 336
Suite B
92 Chai10tte Street
Port Colbome
Ontario
L3K5W1
Tel: (905) 8343651 .
Fax (905) 834.5095
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Port Col borne . Hydro-Electric Commission
Ståtement of Operations and Equity Year ended 

(Unaudited) Dec 31 

for the tw months ended February 29 2000 1999

. Service revenue
Residential $ 1,053,989 $ 5,346,802
General 1,787,876 8,554,170
Large user 57,857
Street lightng 33,735 134,508
Sentinel lighting 395

2,875,995 14,093,337
Serve revenue adjustment (274,302 (41,536)

. 2,601~693 14;051,801
Cost of power

Power purchased - Ontario Hyro .2,385,078 12,071,15a

Gross margin on service revenue 216,615 1,980,645

Other operating revenue 31,537 241,44

248,152. 2,222,088
Operating and maintnance expnse

Distributon 32,484 486,2n
. Utilzation 1,015

32,48 487,292

Billng and collecon .39,709 353,535
Genera administration expense 66,798 385,425
Depreciation 93.,210 554,617

t.
199,717 1,293,5n .,

Income before financial expense 15,951 441,219

Financial expense
Interest 10,735 73;867

Net income $ 5,216 $ 367,352

Equity
Beginning of period $ 8,208,83 $ 7,841,481

Net income 5,216 367,352

End of period $ 8,214,049 $ 8,208,833

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

Grant Thornton ~ 1



Port Col borne Hydro-Electric Commission
Statement of Cash Flow
(Unaudited) .
for the two months ended February 29 200

Year Ended
Dec 31

1999

The accompanying notes are an integral pàrt of this financial statement

Grant Thornton (i
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Port Col borne Hydro-Electric Commission
Balance Sheet
(Unaudited)
FebNary29 200

Dec 31
1999

. Assets

Currnt
Cash
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

$ 827,965
1,986,101

563,301
.20,152

$ 1,322,235
1,872,606

585,920
24,282

Land, buildings and equipment (note 2)

3,397,519 3,605,04

~ 8,733,466
$12,264,993 $ 12,338,509

Uabilties

Currnt
Accunts payale and accruals
Long term debt payale witin onè year

Current portion of customers' deposit

$ 1,240,957 $ 1,34,363
65,00 65,00

.20,000 20,000

1,325,957 1,425,363

547,000 547,000

212,440 212,420

21,130 21,130
.~~~~

'"

2,106,527 2,205,913

8,214,049 8,208,833
1,944,417 1,923,763

10,158¡466 10.132,596

$12,264,993 $ 12,338,509

Long term debt (note 3)

Customers' deposit

Vested sick leave (note 4)

Eql,itUtilit equit .
Equit accumulated through contributed capital

Contingency (note 6)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

Grat Thornton ~ 3
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Port Col borne Hydro-Electric Commission
Notes to the Financial Statements
(Unaudited)
February 29, 2000

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizale value.

Depreciation and Amortization

Rates of depreciation and amortzation applied to wrie-off the cost of land, buildings and
equipment over their estimated lives on the straight-line method, are as follows:

Land rights
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles

2%
1.67%

3.33%"20% .
12.5%-25%

Contributed Capital

Capitl contributed by customers or developers towards the acquisiton of assets is reorded as
equity accumulated through contrbuted capitl. The commission does not recrd amortzation
of contributed capitl. . .

2. Land, Buildings and Equipment
Dec 31

199922

Cost
Accumulated Net
Depreciation Book Value

Net
Book Value

Land and land rights
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles

$ 98,302
515,.650

14,513,847
891,540

$ 22,642
255,528

.6,221,795
651,900

$ 75,660
260,122

8,29,052
.239,640

$ 75,070
262,374

8,149,195
246,827

$ 16,019,339 $ 7,151,865 $ 8,867,474 $ 8,733,466

Grat Thornton ~
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Port Col borne Hydro-Electric Commission
Notes to the Financial Statements
(Unaudited)
February. 29, 200

3. Long Term Debt De 31
1999

$ 612,00
65,00

$547,00

Municipal debentures
Long term debt payable within one year

2000

$ 612,00
65.00

$ 547,00

The debentu.re bears interest at 10,25% and matures in 200. Principal amount payale on the
long term debt within each of the next five years are as follows:

200
2001
2002
2003
200

$ 65,000
72,00
75;00
85,00
95,000

4. Ua~ilty for Vested .St.ck Leve Benefit

Under the revised sick leave benefit plan, all accumulated vested benefit are to be paid to
eligible employee. Eamed sick time and it dollar value have been frozen and transferred to a
separate accunt The accumulation of vesing priileges has been terminated.

This liabilit has been fully provided for in the financial statements.

5. Pension Plans

The commission makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of it .staff. The plan is a defined benefit
plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employee based .
on the length of service and rates of pay.

Effective August 1, 1998, OMERS provided a temporary contribution hOliday, with no employer
or employee pension contributions required until December 31, 2001, as long as there. is
suffcient plan surplus. There wil be a review of the OMERS plan surplus each year to
determine whether the contribution holiday wil continue. As a result, no amount was contributed
to OMERS for 2000 (1999 $ Nil) for currnt service.

Grat Thornton 6i
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Port Col borne Hydro-Electric Commission
Notes to the Financial Statements
(Unaudited)
February 29, 2000

6. Contingency

A class action suit claiming $ 500 milion in restitonary payments plus interest wa served on
Toronto Hydro on November 18,.2000. The action wa initiated against Toronto Hydro Electric
Commission as the representatie of the Defendant Clas consisting of all municipal elecric
utilities in Ontario which have charged late payment charges on overdue utilit bils at any time
after April 1 , 1981.

The claim is that late payment penaltes reult in municipal elecc utilties receiving interest 

at
effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is ilegal under Secon 347(1 )(b) of the Criminal
Code.

The Municipal Elecric Association is undertking the defense of this class action. At this time it .
is not possible to quanti the effec, if any, on the financial sttement of the Commission.
During the period in question the Commission charged $ 858,700 in late payment charges onoverdue utilit bils. ..

r 7. Industry Restrcturing

The Ontrio Government enacted the Energ Competiton Act 200 to introuce competiion to
the Ontario electricit market by the year 20. Under th tenns of this legislation, the Ontario
Energy Board (the "OEB") wil regulate.industry participant by 

issuing licences for the right to
generate, transniit distributeer retail eleccit. These licences will require compliance with
establishing market rules and codes.

Pursuant to this legislation, the Muniëipality of the City of Port Colbome, as owners of the
Commission, must enact a by-law by November7, 2000 to authorize the incorporation of one or
more companies created.for thepurpese of continuing the current distributing and retailng
activities of the. CommisSion. This by-law will also authorze th transfer of assets and liabilties
of the Commission to the applicable, newly created corporations.

8. Subsequent Event

The Comrnission was incorprated on March 1, 2000 and the City of Port Colbome was in the
proess of negotiating a $ 2.5 milion bank loan on behalf of the new corporation.

Grat Thornton ~
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Canadian Niagara Power Inc.
Forecast Income Statements
Years 2003.2006

Forecast. Forecast Forecast Forecast
2003 2004. .2005 2006

Revenue 41,249 42,168 42,800 43,442

less purchased power (26,840) (27.108) (27,379) (27.653)
14,409 15,060 15;421 15,789

Operating Expenses
Wheeling ° ° ° °

Transmission 317 321 326 331

Distribution 2,326 2,361 2,;397 2;433

General 4,776 4,800 4,824 4,848

Municipal and other taxes .553 559 565 570
7,973 8,042 8,111 .8,182

Depreciation and amortization 2,392 2,512 2,632 2,752

Operating Income 4;045 4,506 4,678 4,855

Other income
Interest on investment ° ° ° °

Services 1,035 1,086 1,141 1,198

Gain (lOSS) on FX~ disposals ° ° ° °
1,035 1,086 1,141 1,198.

Other income deductions
Lease expense 1,740 1,740 1,740 1,740

Loan interest expense 1,600 1;600 1",600 1,600
~;. .

Less allowance for funds
"

used during construction 24 24 24 24
3,316 3,316 3,316 3,316

Earnings before income taxes 1,764 2,271 2,503 .2,737

Provision for Income Taxes
Current 706 911 1,001 1,095

Deferred ° ° ° °
706 911 1,001 1,095

Net Income 1,058 1,366 1,502 1,642

t

t
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Cahad~an Niagara Power Inc.
Forecast Balance Sheet
Current Operations
Years 2003-2006

Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
2003 2004 2005 2006

Fixed assets 73,056 76,258 78,843 81,801
less accumulated depreciation (23,325) . (25,733) (28,221) (30,789)
Total Fixed Assets 49,731 50,525 50,622 51,012

Cash and investments ° 0 ° °
Accounts receivable 2,809 2,809 2,809 2,809.
Inventory 900 900 900 900
Other current assets 0 0 0 0
Total Current Assets . 3,709 3,709 3,709 3,709

. Investments 0 0 0 0
Deferred Pension 1,860 1,860 1,860 1,860
Other assets . --50- 50 .-50 50
Other Long-term Assets 1,910 . 1,910 1,910 1,910

Total Assets 55,350 56,144 56,241 56,631

I

Common stock 21,400 .21,400 21,400 21,400

I

Retained earnings 2,958 .3,324 3,826 4,468
Total Shareholder's Equity 24,358 24,724 25,226 25,868

1

Accounts payable 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 i..

Income taxes payable 500 500 50.0 500 ...

t Short term borrowing .1,671 2,099 1,694 1,442
~ Total Current Liabilties 3,171 .3,599 3,194. 2,942(

I

Long-term Debt . 24,821 24,821 24,821 24,821

I

Other Long-term Liabilties 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

t
Total Shareholder's Equity and LiabiUties 55,350 56,144 56,241 56,631

I
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Port Colbome Hydro Inc.
c/o The City of Port Colbome
66 Chai10tte Strt

Port Colbome, Ontario
L3K 3C8

The Corporation of the
City of Port Colbome
66 Chai10tte Street

Port Colbome, Ontario
L3K3C8

Canadian Niagara Power Inc.
1130 Berte Street
P.O. Box 1218
Fort Erie,Ontario
L25Y2

,~
CandianNiagara Power
Company Limited
1130 Berte Street
P.O. Box 1218
Fort Erie, Ontario
L2A5Y2 .

. Augut 17,2001

DELIVRED

Ontao Energy Board

~6th Floor
POBox 2319
2300 Yonge Street
Toronto, Ontaro
M4P lE4

1? ~6öl- 004' 1

C\:e;- ,Âoo \ -oAa'2

Attention: Paul Pudge, Board Secretar

Re: Application for Ontario Energy Board Order - Leaseof Port Colborne
Hydro Inc.. Distribution System

Port Colbome Hydro Inc., the Corporation of the City of Port Colbome, Canadian Niagar
Power Inc., and Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited hereby apply to the Ontaro Energy
Board ("OEB") for an Order:

1. Granting leave, pursuant to section 86(1) of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998, to the
. lease of the Port Colbpme Hydr Inc. electrcity distrbution system to Canadiàn Niagar
Power Inc. iIl açcordace . with a Lease Agreement and Master Implementation

Agreement, executed on July 19, 2001, among Port Colbome Hydro hic. (as Lessor), the
Coipration of the City of Port Colbome (as Shareholder of the Lessor), Canadian

Niagara Power hic. (as Lessee), and Canadian Niagara. Power Company Limited (as
GUartor of the Lessee);

trl~'.t'il

2. Amendig the Trasitional Distrbution Licence ED-1999-0160 of Canadian Niagara
Power Inc. effective on the date 

of the approval of the Lease. Agreement and Master
hnplementation Agreement, by iDcludingthe curent servce area of 

Port ColbomeHydroInc. in the amended Canadian Niagara Power Inc. service area; and

3. Approving the acquisition by Canadian Niagara Power Inc., as an affiliate of a generator
(Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited), of a leasehold interest 

in a distrbution
system in Ontao, puruant 

to section 81 of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998.

The underigned consent to the disposition of these proceediiigs by the OEB without a hearg in
the event that the OEB determes that no person other than the applicants will be materially
affected by the outcome of these proceedings, which the undersigned submit is the case.

Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited. ("CNP") requests that its audited fiocmcial
statements as at and for the years ending December 31, 2000 and December 31, 1999 

(requiredpuruant to section 1.304 of the OEB's MAs Guidelines) be treated as confdential puruant to



2D ,.Rule 13 of the OEB Rules of Practice and Procedure, and the OEB's Phase I Guidelines for the

Treatment of Filngs Made in Confdence, effective March 19, 2001. Should this matter be dealt
with by way of an oral hearng (although the paries submit that an oral hearng is not necessar),
CNP requests that those pars of the hearg dealing with these statements be held in the absence

of the public in, accordance with Rule 47. Accompanying ths letter is a cover letter of Canadian
Niagar Power Company Limited in respect of the confdentiality request. CNP submits that this
inormation is subject to confidentiality as it falls withn those items setout in Appendix 1 of the
OEB's Confdentiality Guidelines, which the OEB has .....previously assessed or~eated as
confdential, and which may be treated as confidential in futue Proceedings." 

More paricularly,

CN submits that these statements constitute "... financial. .information, supplied in confidence
implicitly or explicitly, where the disclosure could reasonably be 

expected to...prejudice

signficantly the competitive position...of a .person...", pursuat to paragraph 17(1)(a) of the
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. F-31 (see Item 5 of
.Appendix 1). An abridged version oftheCN financial statements accompanes.the.cover letter
and the Application as Attchment 1.3.4.

The attched application adheres to the Filng Requirements for Mergers, Acquisitions,

Amalgamations and Divestitures in the Ontaro Electrcity Transmission and Distrbution Sector.
We would be pleased to assist the OEB in any way in its review of this application. In that
regard, . we. would be pleased to provide any additional information, if 

required, or meet, or have

our advisors meet, with OEB staffin order to expedite the OEB'sreview. .

Sincerely,

Mayor V arc Bad~wey
The Corporation of the City of Port
Colborne

~LL
Timothy B. Curis
Vice-President Finance and CFO
Canadian Niagar Power Inc.

~CL
Timothy B. Curis
Vice-President Finance and CFO
Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited

cc. J. Mark Rodger, Borden Ladner Gervais LLP
Patrck Monahan, Davies Ward Phillps & Vineberg LLP

::ODMA\PCDOS\CC1\40332\1
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~\
. PART I: GENERAL MINIMUM FILING REQUIREMENTS

1.1 Identification of the Parties

1.1.1 Applicant
. .... ,

Name of Applicant File No: (OEB Use Only)

Port Col borne Hydro Inc.
~.

Address of Head Offce Telephone Number

(905) 835-2900

c/o The City of Port Colborne Facsimile Number
66 Charlotte Street

(905) 835-2969
Port Col borne, Ontario
L3K3C8

E-mail Address
..

Name of Individiiai to Contact Telephone Number

(416) 367-6190

J. Mark Rodger Facsimile Number
Partner

(416) 361-7088

. Borden Ladner Gervais LLP E-mail Address
Suite 4100, 40 King Street West mrodger~blgcanada.com
Toronto, Ontario

M5H 3Y4

1.1.2 Other Parties to the Transaction .

Name of Other Part OEB Use Only

The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne

Address of Head Ofce . Telephone Number

(905) 835-2900

66 Charlotte Street Facsimile Number
Port Colbome, Ontario

(905) 835-2969L3K3C8

E-mail Address

Name of Individual to Contact Telephone Number

(416) 367-6190

J. Mark Rodger Facsimile Number
Parter

(416) 361-7088

Borden Ladner Gervais LLP E-mail Address
Suite4100, 40 King Street West mrodger(gblgcanada.com
Toronto, Ontario

M5H 3Y4
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Name of Other Part

OEB Use Only 

Canadian Niagara Power Inc.

Address of Head Ofce Telephone Number 

_(905) 871-0330

1130 Bertie Street Facsimile Number ~,

P.O. Box 1218
(905)871-8676Fort Erie, Ontario

L2A 5Y2

E-mail Address

Name of Individual to Contact Telephone Number

(905) 994-3632

Timothy B. .curtis Facsimile Number

Vice. President Finance and Chief Financial Offcer (905) 9942203
,

E-mail Addres

Tim.Curts~aipower .com

Name of Other Part OEB Use Only 

Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited

Address of Head Offce Telephone Number

. (9051 871-0330

1130 Bertie Street Facsimile Number
P.O. Box 1218

(905) 871-8676.Fort Erie, Ontario

L2A5Y2

E-mail Address

Name of Individual to Contact Telephone Number

(905) 9943632

Timothy B. Curtis Facsimile Number
(905) 9942203

Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Offcer
.

E-mail Address

Tim.Curts~aipower.com

2
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1.1.3 Attch a list of the offcers. directors and shareholders of each of the 

partes to theprciposed trnsaction.

Port Colborne Hydro Inc. ("PC Hydro")

Directors: Ross Tuck

Evan Weaver
Mayor Vance Badawey :;.
Len Hunt
Gary Bruno

Shareholders: The Corporationof the City of Port Colborne is' 
the sole shareholder

The Corporation of the City of Port Colborne (the "City")

Offcers: Janet Beckett, City Clerk

Council: Mayor Vance Badawey
Jack Roy
Bil Steele
Frank DiBartolomeo
Yvon Doucet
Bea Kenny
Gary Bruno
Ron Bodner
Barbara. Butters

Canadian Niagara Power Inc.. ("CNPI")

Directors: Mardon J. Erbland

Dennis G. Gfeason
James A. Lea

. TImothy B. Curtis

Offcers: Mardon J. Erbland, President & CEO

Timothy B. Curtis, Vice President, Finance & CFO
Willam J. Daley, Vice President, Human Resources
Frederick J. O'Brien; Vice President, Operations.

Shareholders: Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited.is the sole shareholder

Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited 

("CNP") .
Directors: Gilbert S.Bennett

H. Stanley Marshall
Albert J. Budney
Karl W. Smith
Willam E. Davis
Richard Drouin

Richard Drouin, Chairman of the Board
Mardon J. Erbland, President & CEO
TImothy B. Curtis, Vice President, Finance & CFO
Willam J. Daley, Vice President, Corporate Development
Frederick J. O'Brien, Vice President, Operations
Ronald W. McCabe,Corporate Secretary

Niaaara Mohawk Holdings 
Inc.. holds 50% and Fortis Inc. holds 50%

Offcers:

Shareholders:
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U.4 Attch a corporate chart descrbing the relationship between each of the partes to the proposed trnsaction and
each of their respectve affliates. .

~fit! ..".;.".

Corporate charts describing the relationship between each of the parties to the proposedit.,.;..,:~l.:,'.'.",~')~.;1
transaction and each of their respective affliates are provided as Attachment 1.1 A. l~~
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1,2 Description of the Businesses of the Each of the Parties

1.2.1 Attch a descrption of the business of each of the partes to the proposed trnsaction, including each of their
affliates engaged in, or providing goos or services to anyone engaged in, the generation,transmission,
distrbution or retailng of electcity ("Electrcity Sector Affliates"). .

The following is a description of each of the parties to the proposed transaction, arid their
affliates. :;

Port Colborne Hydro IncJCity of Port Colborne - On 

January 31,2000 the City passed

a transfer by-law that transferred the employees, assets, liabilties, rights and obligations of
the Port Colbome Hydro Eiectric Commission ("Port Colbome HEC") to PC Hydro,effective
March 1, 2000. PC Hydro was incorporated under the Ontario Business Corporations Act
("OBCA") in accordance with section 142 of the Electricity Act, 1998, as the corporate
successor to the Port ColbomeHEC. The City is the sole shareholder of PC Hydro. A ,.
copy of the transfer by-law is provided in Attachment 1.2.1. By virtue of this transfer by- :
law. PC Hydro owns, operates and nianäges the assets associated with the distribution of
electrical power and energy within the geographic terrtory of the City of Port Colbome,
specified in Transitional Distribution Licence ED-1999-0069, which is provided in
Attachment 1.2.1. PC Hydro owns propert rights for the purposes of operating and
maintaining the distribution facilties.

Canadian Niagara Power Inc. I Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited - Canadian
Niagara Power Company Limited ("CNP") was founded in 1892 for the purpose of building
a generating plant at Niagara Falls. CNP began generating electricity from its Rankine
Generating Station in 1905. In 1907, CNP began 

serving customers in Fort Erie using a

transmission line that it constructed between Niagara Falls and Fort Erie. CNP is a
minority investor in two other. regulated electric distribution utilties: Rideau St. Lawrence
Holdings Inc. ("Rideau St. Lawrence"), and Westario Power H.oldings Inc. ("Westario").' .'. .
CNP owns and operates a hydroelectric generating plant and is the sole shareholder of
Canadian Niagara Power Inc. ("CNPI").. In addition, CNP is engaged in providing energy .é~~;
procurement services as a broker and consultant and is engaged in sellng energy in the .'0"'"
United States ("US") wholesale electricity market. With the exception of the wholesale .~l.~~.i~
electricity sales, all of CNP's business is conducted in Ontario. Niagara Mohawk Holdings
Inc., a utilty holding company headquartered in Syracuse, New York, and Fortis Inc., a ;~P)~'

"'éwfoundland-based company, are equal sharehólders of CNP. CNP is licensed as an :~~~
electricity generator by 

the OES (OEB Generation. Licenct: EG,.1999-0387). It is also ".;. .,.
licensed by the OEB as a retailer of gas (OEB Gas Marketêr Licence GM-2000-0034) and ;~t:tt,
electricity (OEB Electricity Retailer Licence ER-2000-0030), and as a wholesaler 

of ':r;.::.:~

electricity (OE. B Electricity Wholesale Licence EW-2000-0247). CNP is licensed by the US 1~~¡1'
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (Docket ER99-187S) to sell electricity at ¡'":ittJ
market-based rates in the US. It is a member of the New York Independent System;è~;';.dt

Operator and is in the process of registering to transact business with the Ontario IMO. .;g.~
CNP holds two permits from the National Energy Board ("NEB") for the importexport of ::=:;E
electricity between Canada and the US. NEB Permit EPE-149 grants permission to export :~:~e~'
and re-import up to SO MWs after wheeling in New York and EPE-84 (Amending Order AO- :~:,§;..
1-EPE-84) grants permission to export up to 300 MW. '. )~f.:~'~::;rb. .

CNPI was incorporated under the OBCA on February 17, 1999. CNPI is a wholly owned
subsidiary of CNP. On March 31, 1999 the transmission and distribution businesses of ;"..,t...:.::;,....;~.:.:.~l.,. .::':..~:.\..~...:. .

CNP were transferred to CNPI to comply with the Energy Competition Act, 1998. The head "",~.
offce of CNPI. is located in Fort Erie, Ontario. CNPI distributes electricity to approximately tf't
1S,OOO customers in the Town of Fort Erie pursuant to Transitional Distribution Licence ED- ":';'\
1999-0160, a copy of which is provided in Attachment 1.2.1. It is also a Licensed ):;~;:
Transmitter with an OEB Transmitter LiGence ET-1999-QS01. CNPI holds permits from the 1'4'; .
NEB authorizing it 

to o~n and operate international electric transmission lines between e'¡",.:ii
Canada and the US (EP 137.) .' .. . .,

('
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1.2.2 Attch a descrption of the geographic terrtory served by each of the partes to the proposed trnsaction,
includin each of their Electrci Sector Affliates, if a Iicable.

Port Colborne Hydro Inc. - PC Hydro serves the geographical territory of the City of Port
Colborne. This is evidenced in Transitional Distribution Licence ED-1999-0069. A map
illustrating the geographic territory served by PC Hydro is provided as Attachment 1.2.2. .

Canadian Niagara Power Inc./Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited - CNPI
serves the geographic territory of the Town of Fort Erie. This is evidenced in Transitional
Distribution Licence EB-1999-0160. A map ilustrating the geographic territory served by
CNPI, Westario and Rideau St. Lawrence is provided as Attachment 1.2.2. The attached
map outlines (heavy highlight) the territories served by CNPI directly as well as by Westario
and Rideau St. Lawrence, in which CNP has a 10% ownershi interest.

1.2.3 Attch a descrption of the customers, including the number of customers in each class, served by each of the

artes to the ro osed trnsaction.

Port Colborne Hydro Inc.
(Port Colborne)
Residential Customers
General Service Customers
Standby Customers
Total:

Number (1999)
7,875
1,138

2
9,015

PC Hydro serves approximately 9,000 residential, commercial and industrial customers in
the City of Port Colborne. The City of Port Col borne has a population of approximately
18,000. PC Hydro uses two customer classes for the purpose of rates and bilings:
Residential and General Service. As of 1999, the General Service Customer Class
includes 1069 customers with a demand less than 50 kW and 69 customers with a demand
greater than or equal to 50 kW.

Canadian Niagara Power Inc.
(Fort Erie)

Residential Customers
General Service Customers
Total:

Number (1999)
13,222

1,457
14,679

CNPI serves approximately 14,700 residential, commercial, and industrial customers in the
Town of Fort Erie. The Town of Fort Erie has a population of approximately 27,000. CNPI
currently uses only two customer classes for the purpose of rates and billng: Residential
and General Service. The Residential class includes both residential customers and a
sub-class termed "seasonal". There are currently 12,008 residential customers and 1,214
seasonal customers being served by CNPI. The General Service class includes all
commercial and industrial businesses. There are currently 1,336 customers with a load
less than or e ual to 50 kWand 121 customers with a load reater than 50 kW.

1.2.4 Provide a descrption of the proposed geographic service area of each of the partes after completion of the
ro osed transaction.

The proposed transaction wil not change the PC Hydro geographic service area.
However, CNPl's Transitional Distribution Licence would be amended by expanding the
geographic service area to include PC Hydro's service area. A map illustrating the
respective service areas after completion of the proposed transaction is provided in
Attachment 1.2.4.

~
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1.3 Description of the Proposed Transaction

1.3.1 Indicate the nature of the application/notification: Check
Box

Acquisition/constrcton of a generation facility by a trnsmitter or distrbutor (s. 80). If yes, complete
Part III

Acquisition/constrction of a trnsmission or distrbution system by a generator (s. 81). If yes, X
com lete Part III

Amendment to conditions of licence as a result of the proposed trnsaction. If yes, complete Part IV X

X

1.3.2

On July 19, 2001 PC Hydro as Lessor, the City of Port Colborne as the Shareholder of the
Lessor, CNPI as Lessee and CNPas Lessee Guarantor executed the Lease Agreement
and the Master Implementation Agreement (collectively the "Agreements") to lease PC
Hydro's distribution system to CNPI for the purposes of distributing electricity in the Port
Colborne area. Under the Agreements, CNPI has agreed to pay PC Hydro over a ten year
lease term, subject to certain adjustments at closing, monthly lease payments of
approximately $127,350 per month. In exchange, CNPI wil receive all revenues from the
distribution system pursuant to the terms of the Agreements. CNPlhas an option to
purchase the distribution system of PC Hydro at the end of the lease term for the purchase
price of $6,900,000.

CNPI has committed to provide a level of service to local customers that is no less than the
level of service provided to CNPl's current customers. Moreover, CNPI has agreed to' .
adopt the rates approved by the OEB with respect to an application filed on November 30,
2000 by PC Hydro for approval of its proposed distribution rates.

In addition, CNPI has agreed to enter into ancilary agreements with the City of Port
Col borne with respect to street lighting services, access to municipal property, and utilty
pole access.

CNPI wil operate and manage the distribution system and wil pay for all operating costs
incurred in operating, managing, repairing, maintaining and replacing the lease assets and
lease properties during the lease term. All replacement assets which are characterized as
operating expenses wil become the propert of PC Hydro and be part of the leased assets.

New assets which require a capital investment by CNPI, including assets which expand the
existing PC Hydro distribution system and major assets which replace existing PC Hydro
assets, wil become the propert of CNPI and wil not be part of the leased assets. If CNPI
does not exercise its option to purchase the PC Hydro distribution system at the end of the
lease term, PC Hydro wil purchase these assets from CNPI.

CNPI and PC Hydro have obtained an advanced tax ruling from the Ministry of Finance
indicating that this transaction does not result in any tax liabilties under s.94(1) of the
Electricit Act, 1998.

1.3.3 Attch the details of the consideration (e.g. cash, assets, shares) to be given and received by each of the partes
to the ro osed trnsacton.

PC Hydro has agreed to lease its distribution system to CNPI in consideration for the lease
payments of approximately $127,350 per month subject to certain adjustments at closing.
In exchange, CNPI would receive all revenues from the distribution business. CNPI wil
also have an option to purchase the distribution business of PC Hydro at the end of the ten
ear term for the urchase rice of $6,900,000.
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1.3.4

Copies of the audited financial statements for PC Hydro for the years ending December 31,
2000 and December 31, 1999 are provided in Attachment 1.3.4.

Copies of the audited financial statements for CNPI for the years ending December 31, ., . ':
1999 and December 31, 2000 are provided in Attachment 1.3.4. : ~

CNP requests that its audited financial statements for the years ending December 31,2000"
and December 31, 1999, be treated as confidential as requested in the cover letter to this
Application and in a separate letter from CNP which accompanies this Application. A copy
of CNP's audited financial statements has been enclosed with the separate letter, in
keeping with the OEB's Guidelines for the Treatment of Filngs made in Confidence.
Copies of the abridged versions of CNP's audited financial statements are included in the
Fortis Inc. 2000 annual financial statements provided as Attachment 1.3.4. (see Note 19 in
the Notes to the Fortis Inc. 2000 financial statements). CNP notes that as Fortis Inc. has a
50% interest in CNP, the abridged 2000 financial statements present CNP-related financial
information in a manner consistent with such interest. This point is noted in the "Summary
of Accountin Policies" in the notes to the Fortis Inc. 2000 financial statements.

1.3.5 Attch the pro forma financial statements of each of the partes reflecting completion of the proposed transaction.

The pro forma financial statement for PC Hydro is provided as Attachment 1.3.5.

The ro forma financial statement for CNPI is rovided as Attachment 1.3.5.

1.4 Other Information

1.4.1 Provide copies of all annual report, proxy circulars, prospectuses.or other information filed with securities
commissions or similar authorities or sent to shareholders for each of the partes to the proposed transaction and
their affliates within the ast 2 ears.

To date, none of the parties or their affliates has publicly filed annual reports, proxy
circulars, prospectuses or other information with securities commissions or similar
authorities or sent such information to shareholders.

1.4.2 Attch copies of all legal documents (or the most recent draft, if not yet executed) to be used to implement the
ro osed trnsaction.

Copies of the Master Implementation Agreement and the Lease Agreement, executed on
July 19, 2001 by PC Hydro as Lessor, the City of Port Colborne as Shareholder of the
Lessor, CNPI as Lessee and CNP as the Lessee Guarantor, are provided in Attachment
1.4.2.

1.4.3 Attch confirmation that the partes to the proposed trnsaction are in compliance with all licence and code
re uirements, and wil continue to be in com Iiance after com letion of the ro osed transaction.

As noted in paragraph 1.2.1 above, PC Hydro and CNPI have Transitional Distribution
Licences effective April 1, 1999. To the best of their knowledge, all parties are currently in
compliance with all licence and code requirements. It is expected that following the
completion of this transaction, PC Hydro and CNPI wil be fully compliant with all licences
and codes.

1.4.4 Explain whether the proposed trnsaction will result in a change of control of any of the partes. If yes, please
com lete Part II.

There wil be no chan e in the control of an of the arties as a result of this transaction.

02l
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PART II: ADDITIONAL FILING REQUIREMENTS

2.1 Faciltate Competition

2.1.1 Attch a short descrption of the impact. if any, of the proposed trnsacton on competition. If there wil be no
im act on com etition, lease state the reasons.

There wil be no impact on competition. This transaction is consistent with the policy
direction set out by the Provincial Government in the White Paper, the Energy Competition
Act, 1998, and statements made by the Minister of Energy, Science and Technology in the
legislature, to encourage municipalities to consolidate their electric utilties in order to
create a more effcient and competitive electric industry. While this transaction does not
represent a consolidation of ownership of distribution utilties, the operation of the PC Hydro
distribution system by CNPI will further the creation of greater effciencies in the electricity
distribution sector.

The competitive electricity market being introduced in Ontario will allow customers to
choose their competitive retail supplier of electricity. As a distributor of electricity, PC
Hydro's rates are regulated by the OEB, and the distribution sector is not competitive. As
the only "retailng" carried on by distributors wil be pursuant to section 29 of the Electricity
Act, 1998, the lease of PC Hydro's distribution system by CNPI wil have no direct impact
on a customer's access to competitive electricity provision, nor wil the fact that CNP is an
owner of generation assets and a retailer of electricity interfere with customer choice. This
situation is no different from that of other utilties with affliates that are energy service
providers. CNPI's operation of PC Hydro's distribution system may indirectly facilitate a
customer's access to competitive electricity supply, since retail suppliers will be more likely
to offer their product and services to customers in utilties with larger customer bases, and .
retail suppliers in the Port Col borne and Fort Erie service areas will only have to deal with a
sin Ie distributor for the com etitive su I of electrici to alar er customer base.

2.2 Non-Discriminatory Access to Transmission and Distribution Systems

2.2.1 Provide confirmation that the proposed trnsaction wil have no impact on access to the transmission or

distrbution s stem of the artes.

The transaction wil have no negative impact on the access to the transmission or
distribution s stems of the arties.

2.3 Protect Interests of Consumers

2.3; 1 Provide details of the cots and benefits of the proposed trnsaction to the consumers of the partes to the

proposed transacton.

The lease of PC Hydro's distribution system to CNPI will ensure the continued safe and
reliable supply of energy to its customers. PC Hydro and the City of Port Colborne utilized
a competitive Request for Proposal process and determined that the CNP proposal
represents fair market value for the distribution system. PC Hydro and the City of Port
Col borne are confident that the transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement and
Master Implementation Agreement wil result in continued reliable supply of electricity to its
customers at a high service leveL. CNPI and CNP have extensive electricity distribution
expertise and have a demonstrated record of safe and reliable energy practices.

The transaction wil not result in a rate increase for PC Hydro's customers (see section
2.3.6 below). With respect to employee job security, CNPI has agreed to offer employment
to PC Hydro's employees and has negotiated and reached agreements with local unions.
CNPI is committed to the Port Colborne area, and wil contribute the sum of at least
$10,000.00 per year for the term of the lease to local economic development and
community facilties and event sponsorship programs.

8
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2.3.2

CNPI will plan and execute projects on the Port Colborne distribution systems that are
designed to ensure system integrity, reduce losses, lessen exposure from aging facilties,
and maintain regulatory compliance. Upon completion of the proposed transaction, CNPC..
wil evaluate the existing capital and maintenance plans of the previous PC Hydro.'
management and those identified during CNPl's due dilgence inspections, as a means of"
developing a five year plan and budget to ensure the operational safety and system"'

integrity of the Port Colborne operation. Examples of areas covered in the five year plan
include:

· customer driven upgrades and expansion requirements,

· system driven capital rebuild and expansion requirements,

· preventive maintenance inspections and refurbishments,

· vegetation management requirements,

· health and safety requirements,

· environmental requirements, and

· propert, fleet and tool requirements.

Accordingly, the distribution system covered under the proposed transaction would be
incor orated into the distribution lannin rocesses of CNPI.

The Master Implementation Agreement (at section 8.1 (f)J commitsCNPI to provide a level
of service to the Port Col borne service area that is comparable in the aggregate for each
customer class to that provided by CNPI to its customers in the Fort Erie service area. It
further requires CNPI to maintain a customer service offce in the City of Port Col borne
during the term of the lease and to liaise with City offcials. To this end, CNPI intends to
maintain a service center located in Port Colborne. Certain facilties, vehicles and tools will
continue to be utilized to meet the needs of Port Col borne customers. In addition,
resources are available from CNPl's Fort Erie operation to be used in place of or to
supplement the Port Col borne resources. As the existing facilities have been assessed to
be adequate to service the area under normal operating conditions, it is anticipated that
extensive capital expenditures for tools, vehicles and propert wil not be required. CNPI
wil re-evaluate this assumption after completion of the proposed transaction and then
routinely on a yearly basis, particularly in the areas of manpower, vehicles and tools. The
functions of providing new service connections, underground locates, meeting customer
appointments, and providing emergency and general dispatch response, will be performed
from both Port Colborne and Fort Erie. Telephone accessibility and responses to written
enquiries will follow the same process of being provided from both Port Col borne and Fort
Erie. Reliability indicators will be monitored and analyzed as primary performance
indicators of the system's health. Corrective action will be taken as required. These
indicators will be tracked se aratel from the Fort Erie indicators.

2.3.3 Provide details, including any capital expenditure plans, of how quality and reliabilty of service wil be maintained.
after com letion of the ro osed transacton.

2.3.4 Indicate whether the partes to the proposed transaction intend to undertke a rate harmonization process after

the ro osed transacton is com leted.

The Master Implementation Agreement (at section 8.3(b)J commits CNPI to adopt the rates
resulting from PC Hydro's November 2000 application to the OEB. Accordingly, the parties
do not currentl intend to undertake a rate harmonization rocess.

9
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2.3.5 If rate harmonization is planned, please confirm that such rate harmonization wil conform with the rate

harmonization rocess contained in the Distrbution Rate Handbook.

As CNPI wil initially adopt PC Hydro's existing rate structure, this question is not
a Iicable.

2.3.6 ed trnsaction are lannin .

PC Hydro is in the process of establishing its unbundled and market-adjusted electricity
distribution rates using the Rate Unbundling Design model designed by the OEB and the
guidelines set out in the OEB's Electricity Distribution Rate Handbook and Ontario Energy
Board Decision with Reasons (RP-2000-0069) of September 29,2000 in determining the
rate structure. This Rate Application is currently pending before the OEB. The Master
Implementation Agreement (at Subsection 8.3(b)l provides that, "Lessee shall assume the
Rates established or to be established by any Rate Order in response to Lessor's Rate
Application." The Master Implementation Agreement also 

provides that the Lessee shall
make all subsequent Rate Applications and applications for adjustments to the rates (such
as for Z factor/transition cost items) that may be required by the OEB during the Term of
the Lease; obtain or prepare the cost of service study that may be required for Second
Generation PBR; and".. .respond generally to all notices and directives of the OEB in
connection with future Rate Applications during the Lease Term." There wil be no changes
in rate levels as a result of this transaction.

2.3.7 Descrbe how the proposed change, if any, in rates has been communicated to affected ratepayers.

As there wil be no change in the rates as a result of this proposed transaction, this
uestion is not a Iicable.

2.4 Promote Economic. Efficiency

2.4.1 Identify and quantify any costs, effciencies and/or economies of scale that may result from the proposedtrnsaction. .
Effciencies and economies of scale may be realized over time in the administrative
functions such as management, customer service, finance, human resources and health
and safety. As the service territories of Fort Erie and Port Col borne are adjacent, some
economies of scale and effciencies may also be realized in metering and electrical
services.

2.5 Financial Viabilty

2.5.1 Provide a valuation of any assets or shares that wil be trnsferred in the proposed trnsaction. Provide details

on how this value was determined, includin an assum tions made about future rate levels.

PC Hydro received a number of competitive offers for the acquisition of PC Hydro from its
Request for Proposals process, and is therefore confident that the payment terms set.out in
the Lease Agreement and Master Implementation Agreement represent fair and reasonable
value for the distribution s stem bein leased.

2.5.2

Under the Lease Agreement and Master Implementation Agreement, CNPI wil receive all
revenues from the PC Hydro distribution system. CNPI anticipates financing this transaction
from its own cash flow which should be suffcient to make the monthly lease payments of
approximately $127,350. As lessee guarantor, CNP would be able to service the annual
lease commitment of approximately $1,500,000 should CNPI require additional funding, as
CNP has a net annual income of over $9,000,000.
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2.5.3 Outline the interest coverage ratios and cashflow to debt ratios of the partes to the proposed trnsaction prior to

and after com letion of the ro osed trnsaction.

For the year 2000, the interest coverage ratio for CNPI is as follows: EBITDA is $3,572,000;
Interest and Lease Expense is $1,345,000; and Interest Coverage Ratio is 2.7. The cash
flow to debt ratio for CNPI is as follows: EBITDA is $3,572,000; Debt is $10,000,000; and
Cash Flow to Debt Ratio is 004.

The following are the Pro Forma ratios for CNPI. The interest coverage ratio for CNPI iS,as
follows: EBITDA is $4,643,000; Interest and Lease Expense is $2,873,000; and Interest
Coverage Ratio is 1.6. The cash flow to debt ratio for CNPI is as follows: EBITDA is
$4,643,000; Debt is $10,000,000; and Cash Flow to Debt Ratio is 0.5.

2.5.4 Provide the most recent individual or joint public health and safety audits or environmental audits of the facilties of
the partes to the proposed trnsaction. If public health and safety audits, or environmental audits have not been

conducted, provide details of how the potential liabilty associated with the continued operation of assets has been
determined. Provide details of how the artes ro ose to deal with an otentialliabilties.

Environmental and safety assessments of PC Hydro's distribution system were undertaken
by CNPI as part of its due diligence process. CNPI is satisfied that any potential liability is
not onerous. PC Hydro has owned, operated and occupied its facilities and lands in
substantial compliance with applicable environmental laws and authorizations. The parties
agreed that CNPI would bear the cost and liability of addressing certain environmental or
occupational health and safety matters with respect to the PC Hydro distribution system.
CNPI has extensive insurance coverage provided as part of the Fortis Group of Companies
insurance olicies.

2.6 Faciltate Energy Efficiency and Use of Environmentally Benign Energy Sources

2.6.1 Provide the details of environmental policies and programs established .by each of the partes to the proposed

trnsaction and indicate chan es to these olicies, if an ,that would arise as a result of the ro osed transaction.

CNPI has an Environmental Management System 
("EMS") in place which is consistent with

ISO 14001 standards for environmental management systems. The EMS lays out CNPl's
environmental policies and control procedures. In addition CNPI, through CNP's
membership in the Canadian Electricity Association ("C EA") , participates in the CEA's
Environmental Commitment and Responsibilty Program ("ECR Program"). It is CNPl's
intention to incorporate the Port Col borne operation into its EMS and to make the Port
Colborne operation a part of its commitment to the ECR Program.

During CNPl's due dilgence efforts leading to the proposed transaction, it conducted Phase
I and Phase" environmental site assessments of the PC Hydro distribution system (facilties
and properties). It is CNPI's intention to incorporate the results of these assessments into
its environmental lans for the PC H dro 0 eration.

2.6.2 Provide the details of any energy effciency policies and programs of each of the partes to the proposed

transaction and indicate changes to these programs, if any, that would arise as a result of the proposed
trnsaction.

CNPI wil incorporate the PC Hydro distribution system operation into its corporate programs
in these areas and include any programs in future corporate business plans. At this stage
there are no programs that wil be changed as a result of this transaction. However, the
management and board of PC Hydro and CNPI wil examine energy effciency policies and
ro rams.

3\
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2.7 Other

2.7.1 Provide details of any public consultation process engaged. in by the partes to the proposed trnsaction, and the

details of an communication lans for ublic disclosure of the ro osed trnsaction.

As noted herein, the parties issued joint media releases at various key milestones during
the negotiations. Responses to the proposed transaction have been positive.

On January 19, 2001 a press conference was held at the City of Port Col borne to
"announce a significant and historic decision respecting hydro services in the City of Port
Colborne." PC Hydro and CNPI issued a joint press release outlining the terms of the
Letter of Intent and their commitment to negotiate a lease agreement. A copy of a Letter
dated January 18, 2001 from the Offce of the Mayor and the Joint Press Release are
provided as Attachment 2.7.1.

On January 22, 2001 the City'of Port Colborne, ata City Council Meeting, reviewed the
Letter of Intent and the proposal to lease PC Hydro's distribution system to CNPI.
Representatives from CNPI attended the meeting and provided a briefing on their
expectations. Copies of the City Council Minutes and the Mayor's Report dated January
22,2001 are provided as Attachment 2.7;1,

On February 27,2001 PC Hydro and CNPI held a public information session on the
proposed transaction which was advertised in local papers. Copies of the public notices
are provided as Attachment 2.7.1. J. Mark Rodgers, counsel for PC Hydro, gave a
presentation to the attendees that provided an overview of the restructuring of Ontario's
energy sector in general, and of this proposed transaction.

On July 10, 2001, the City of Port Colborne, at a City Council Meeting, enacted a by-law to
authorize PC Hydro and the City of Port Colborne to execute a Lease Agreement and
Master Implementation Agreement. A copy of By-Law No. 4094/89/01 and the City
Council Minutes are provided as Attachment 2.7 .1,

On July 16, 2001 at a City Council Meeting, an announcement was made that PC Hydro
Inc. would be signing a lease agreement with CNPI on July 19, 2001. A copy of the
Mayor's Report is provided as Attachment 2.7.1.

On July 20, 2001, the City of Port Colborne issued a joint press release announcing that
PC Hydro, the City of Port Colborne, CNPI and CNP had signed a Lease Agreement and
Master Implementation Agreement to lease PC Hydro's distribution system to CNPI. A
copy of the Joint Press Release dated July 20, 2001 is provided as Attachment 2.7.1.

On July 30, 2001 at a City Council Meeting, an update on the lease agreement was made
as well as an update on the OEB application. A copy of the Mayor's Report is provided as
Attachment 2.7.1.

Throughout the negotiation of the Lease Agreement and Master Implementation
Agreement the media has reported positive local support for the proposed lease
agreement. Copies of local media reports are provided as Attachment 2.7.1.

The Parties also note that potential Intervenors will have an opportunity to express their
concerns to the OEB in response to the notice that wil be published pursuant to the OEB's
directions in this re ard.

12
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PC Hydro is not aware of any suits, actions, inquiries or proceedings by any government ..
body, or other legal or administrative proceeding, except for proceedings before the OEB,.:
that have been instituted or threatened against it except for the following: .

· A class action claiming $500 milion in restitutionary payments plus interest was
served on the Toronto Hydro-Electric Commission on November 18,1998. The
action was initiated against the Toronto Hydro-Electric Commission as the
representative of the Defendant Class consisting of all municipal electric utilities in
Ontario, which have charged late payment charges on overdue utility bills at any
time after April 1, 1981. The claim is based on the premise that late payment
penalties result in the municipal electric utilties receiving interest at effective rates
in excess of 60% per year, which is ilegal under section 347(1 )(b) of the Criminal
Code. PC Hydro is a member of the Defendant Class. The Municipal Electric
Association is undertaking the defence of this action. At this time, it is not
possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial statements of each the
parties.

CNP and CNPI are not aware of any suits, actions, inquiries or proceedings by any
government body, or other legal or administrative proceeding, except for proceedings
before the Ontario Ener Board that have been instituted or threatened a ainst them.

2.7.2 Please list all suits, actions, investigations, inquiries or proceedings by any govemment body, or other legal or
administrtive proceeding, except proceedings before the Board, that have been instituted or threatened
a ainst each of the artes to the ro sed trnsaction or an of their res ective affliates.

N/A.

2.7.3 Please rovide the Board with an other information that is relevant to the a Iication.

13
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PART II: ACQUISITIONS BETWEEN ELECTRICITY TRANSMITTERS AND

DISTRIBUTORS AND ELECTRICITY GENERATORS

If the transaction requires a notice under sections 80 or 81 of the Act, please complete and submit
the following information.

3.1.1

Neither PC Hydro nor the City of Port Colborne, has any generation capacity. CNPI does not
have any generation capacity.

CNP, the sole shareholder of CNPI, owns and operates a hydroelectric generating plant in
Niagara Falls, Ontario. CNP is licensed as an electricity generator by the OEB (Generator
Licence EG-1999-0387). The generation capacity of CNP wil not change as a result of this
transaction.

3.1.2 Descnbe the generation market share, within the Province of Ontano, of the partes to the proposed transaction,
includin each of their res ective Ener Sector Affliates, nor to and after com letion of the ro osed transaction.

3.1.3

The City of Port Colborne, PC Hydro and CNPI do not have any generation capacity and will
not gain any generation capacity as a result of this transaction. This transaction wil not result
in a chan e in CNP's eneration market share.

ro osed transaction.

This uestion is not a Iicable.

14
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PART iv: AMENDMENTS TO LICENCE

If any of the parties to the proposed transaction is requesting an amendment to its licence as a result
of the proposed transaction, please complete and submit the following information.

4.1.1 If the proposed trnsaction will require an amendment to the descrption of the licensed terrtory contained in

Schedule I to the licence of any part to the trnsaction, please provide a detailed description of the requested ..
chan e.

The Master Implementation Agreement (section 6.1) requires CNPI to make an application
pursuant to section 60 of the DEB Act to amend its Transitional Distribution Licence ED-1999-
0160 (Fort Erie area) to include the distribution area set out in PC Hydro's Transitional
Distribution Licence ED-1999-0069 (Port Colbome area). As a result of discussions with OEB
staff, the parties understand that this requirement may be addressed through this MAADs
filing process. A map illustrating the respective service areas after completion of the proposed
transaction has been referred to in paragraph 1.2.4 and accompanies this application as
Attachment 1.2.4.

4.1.2 If any of the partes will not be in compliance with all applicable coes and rules after completion of the proposed

transaction, please explain the reasons for such non-compliance. (Note: any application for an exemption from a
rovision of a rule or coe is sub.ect to a se arate a Iication rocess.

The parties expect to be in compliance with all applicable codes and rules after completion of
the ro osed transaction.

::ODMA\PCDOCS\CCT\35126\10
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Ontario Energy
Boa'rd
p.O Box 2319
2300 Yonge Street
26th. Floor

Toronto ON M4P 1 E4 .
Telephone: (416) 481-967
Facsimile: (416) 440.7656

Commission de l'Ênergie
de l'Ontario
C.P.2319
2300. rue Yonge
26e étage

Toronto ON M4P 1 E4
Télephone; (416) 481-1967

Télecopieur: (416) 440.7656

9 0 i) - 87 (- 8 676'

~ 2(_~~~LA~~
Ontario

:;"

August 22, 2001 BY FAX ONLY

Mr. Ross Tuck, Chair
Port Co/borne Hydro Inc.
c/o The City of Port Colborne
66 Charlotte Street
Port Colborne, Ontario
L3K 3C8

Mr. Timothy B. Curtis
Vice-President Finance and CFO
Canadian Niagara Power Inc.
1130 Bertie Street
P.O.Box 1218

Fort Erie, Ontariq
L2A 5Y2

Dear Sirs:

Re: Lease of the Port Col borne Hydro Inc. to Canadian Niagara Power Inc., request
for new Licence of Canadian Niagara Power Inc. and approving the acquisition
by Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited.

This wil acknowledge receipt on Aug 20, 2001 of the Application filed by the Canadian
Niagara Power Inc., Canadian Niagara Power Company, Port Colborne Hydro Inc. The
Corporation of the City of Port Colborne.

The Board"as assigned file number RP-2001-0041 (EB-2001-0492) to this matter. Please
refer to this number in all future correspondence to the Board on this Application.

Yours truly,

hl/
Peter H. O'Dell

Assistant Board Secretary
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August 17, 2001

Ontao Energy Board

26th Floor
P.O. Box 2319
2300 Y onge Street

Toronto, ON M4P 1E4

Attention: Paul Pudge. Board Secreta

Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited
Confidential Treatment of Financial Statements

We are wrtig fuer to the letter dated of equa date hereof in respect of an application

(the "Application") being made puruat to provisions of 
the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 conceg

the proposed lease of Port Colborne Hydro Inc.'s electrcity distrbution system to Canadian Niagar
Power Inc.

In accordace with Rule 13 of the Rules of Prctice and Procedur (the "Rules") and Par

3 of the Guidelies for the Tre1ient of Filgs mae in Confdence - Phae I (the "Guidelies") of the
Ontao Energy Board (the "OEB"), we request that the enclosed 1999 and 2000 ficial stateents of

Canadian Niagar Power Company Limted ("CN") requied by section 1.3.4 of the Application be held

in confidence by the OEB. In accordace with Rule 47 of the Rules, should the subject matter of the
Application be dealt with by way of an ora hearg, we request tht those par of 

the heag dealg with
the enclosed fiancial statements be held in the absence of the public.

The enclosed ficial statements of CN come with the ambit of the exceptions listed
in section 17(1) of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (the "FIPPA") and

therefore corrspond with Item Number 5 in Appendi 1 to the Guidelies, which appendi lists those
records which the OEB ha previously assessed or mataed as confdential. The ficial stateents fal

with section 17(1) of the FIPPA on the basis tht they constitute detaled ficial inormtion supplied
in confdence which. if diclosed, could reasonably be expected to prejudice signficantly the competitive
position of CN's unegulated and competitive operations. CN is a private company and, as such, the
enclosed fiancial statements are not curntly available on the public record. Previous figs of CN's
fincial statements made with the OEB have be made in confdence on the sae basis.

Doc #: 963924.2

Canadian Niagara Power Company Limited
1130 Bertie Street. P.O. Box 1218. Fort Erie, Ontario. L2A 5Y2

Telephone: (905) 871-0330
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.,

\V ~ have included in a separt~ envelope the financial statements ofD"P for which we ar

requestig confdential treatment. w~ have also included herewith and \\ith the schedules to the
Application an abridged version of the fincial statements as included in the Forts Inc. 2000 anua
ficialstatements which we propose be placed on the public record (see note 19 in the notes to the Forts
Inc. ficial statements). The difference between the two sets of financial statements is that the abridged

version aggrgates and preents in su fonnt the detaed ficial inormtion included in the fu

versions. As well. given that Forts Inc. has a 50% interest in Ü'1', the abridged fiancial statements
provide ficial inormtion presented in a maer consistent with such interest. Th point is noted in the
"Sui of Accountig Policies" in the notes to the Forts Inc. financial statements. As discussed above,
disclosure of the detailed ficial inormtion would adversely afect the competitive position of CN"P's

uneguated and competitive operations. The inormtion provided in the abridged verion is in sucient
deta to demonstrte CN's ability to service the anua lease commtment of its wholly-owned subsidiar,
Canadian Niagar Power Inc., in CNP's role as gutor under the proposed traction, as discussed

in section 2.5.2 of the Application.

We would be pleased to assist the OEB in any way in its consideration of 
th request for

confdential trannent. Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions or requi anytg
fier.

Your very try,

~¿'
Timothy B. Curs

Doc: =: lJIi3lJ::4.2
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MAAD Application - Canadian Niagara Power Inc. and Port Co/borne Hydro Inc.

Filing Requirement 1.1.4
Corporate Chart showing the relationship between CNPI and CNP.

July 27,2001 Canadian Niagara Power
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Gl'nt Thornton LLP
Charre Accountants
Management Consultnt
cadian Member Finn of
Gra Thornn lntemation

llll
Grant Thornton ~

Auditors' Report

To the shareholder

We have audited the balance sheet of Port Colbome Hydro Inc. as at December 31,200 and the
statements of earnings, retained earnings and cah flows tor the ten months then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibilit of the utilits management. Our responsibilit is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance wih generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurace whether the financia
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finacial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 

as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respect, the financial positon of
Port Colborne Hydro Inc. as at December 31 , 2000 and the results of it oprations for the ten months

then ended in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles.

Port Colborne, Ontario
June 15, 2001

M4LùfJ
Chartered Accountants

~ P. o. Sox 336
SuiteS
92 Charlone Street
Port Cobome
Ontario
L3K 5W1
Tel: (905) 834.3651
Fax: (905) 8345095
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Port Col borne Hydro Inc.
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2000

Asets

Current
Cash
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

$ 99,132
1,979,162

549,507
25.309

3,544,110

Lad, buildings and equipment (Note 3) 8.610,295

$ 12,154,405

Uabilities

Current
Payables and accruals
Vested sick leave payable (Note 4)
Current porton of customers' deposit
Current portion of long term debt

$ 1,439,971

21,130
20,000
72,000

1.,553,101

Customers' deposits
Liability for future benefits (Note 5)
Note payable (Note 7)
Long term debt (Note 6)

214,065
495,362

4,725,070
475,000

Shareholder's Equit
Capital stock (Note 8)
Retained earnings

7,462.598

4,234,195
457.612

4.691.807

$ 12,154,405

Contingency (Note 6)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Grant Thornton &
3
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Port Co I borne Hydro lric.
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2000

1. Incorporation

The.Ontano govemment enacted the Energy Competition Act, 1998 to introduce competiton to
the Ontano electncit market by the year 2000. Under the terms of this, the Ontano Energy
Board (the "DEB") wil regulate industry participants by issuing licenses for the nght to generate,
transmit, distribute or retail electricity. These licenses wil require compliance with established
market rules and codes.

Pursuant to this legislation, the municipality of the City of Port Colbome, as owners of the fonner
Port Colbome Hydro-Electric Commission, incorporated one company, created for the purpose
of continuing the distributing and retailing activies of the former commission. Port Colbome
Hydro Inc. issued 1,000 common shares to the Cit of Port Colbome upon incorporation on
March 1, 2000 for the net assets of the former Port Colbome Hydro-Elecc Commission.
Actve operations commenced on March 1, 2000.

A Cit of Port Colbome transfer by-law authoried the transfer of substantially all the assets and
liabilities of the former commission to the newly created corpration. In this regard, net assets of
$ 8,959,265 were transferred to Port Colbome Hydro Inc. on March 1,200. In consideration for
the transfer of the net assets, the corporation issued a promissory note payable to the Git of
Port Co/borne and 1 ,000 common shares.

Net assets transferred to the corporation, at the assigned values, are as follows:

Cash
Other current assets
Land buildings and equipment,
net of accumulated depreciation

Current liabilties
Other liabilities

$ 127,965
2,569,554

8,853,874
(1,325,947)

(780,570)

9,444,866
(485.611)

$ 8,959,265

Liability for future benefits

Net assets

Consideration issued by the corporation was as follows:

Note payable ,
1,000 common shares $ 4,725,070

4.234,195

$ 8,959,265

Grant Thornton ~
5
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Port Colborne Hydro Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31 , 2000

3. Land, buildings and equipment

Land and land rights
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles

Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

$ 84,702 $ 23,694 $ 61,008
515,650 266,791 248,859

14,789,220 6,692,498 8,096,722
846.907 643.201 203,706

$ 16,236,479 $ 7,626,184 $ 8,610,295

4. L.abilit for vested sick leave benefit

Under the revised sick leave benefit plan, all accumulated vested benefit are to be paid to
eligible employees. Eamed sick time and it dollar vaue have been frozen and trasferred to a
separate account. The accumulation of vesting prileges has been terminated.

This liabilit has been fully provided for in the financial statements.

5. Uabilty for future benefits

Port Colbome Hydro Inc. pays certin benefits of it retired employees. Effective March 1, 2000,
Port Colbome Hydro Inc. adopted The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accuntants new
accounting standards for future benefit. Port Colbome Hydro Inc. recognizes these post-
retirement costs in the period in which the employees rendered the servces, The accrued
benefit liabilty at January 1, 2000 of $ 485,61 1 and the expense for the year then ended
December 31 , 2000, was determined by actarial valuation using a discount rate of 6%.

Information about Port Colbome Hydro Inc.'s defined benefit plan is as follows:

. Accrued benefit liabilit recognized in the balance sheet at January 1 , 2000
Expense for the period January 1 , 200 to December 31 , 2000
Benefits paid for the period

Projected accrued benefit obligation at December 31, 2000

$ 485,611
37,274

(27,523)

$ 495,362

This liabilit has been retroactively adjusted through the net assets transferred from the City of
Port Colbome (Note 1).

Grant Thornton e
7
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Port Col borne Hydro Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31 , 200

7. Note payable

The note is due to the Cit of Port Colbome. Interest has been set at a rate of 7.25% an should
accrue from the date of opening of the Ontario electricit market as announced by the Ministry of
Energ, Science and Technology. There are no set repayment terms for principal. The Cit of
Port Colbome has the option to convert some or all of the principal into common shares of the
company.

8. Capital stock

Authorized:

The company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited
number of preference shares.

Issued:

1,100 common shares
$ 4,234,195

During the year the company issued 1 ,000 common shares for the net asets of Port Colbome
Hydro Inc. (Note 1) and 100 common shares at the date of incorpration.

9. Supplemental cash flow information

Change in non-cash operàting working capital

Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in inventories
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in payables and accruals

$ 6,940
13,794
(5,157)

199.014

$ 214,591

The company paid interest of $ 59,416 during the ten months ended December 31, 2000.

The company received interest of $ 43,151 during the ten months ended December 31 , 2000.

10. Pension agreements

The corporation makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its staff. The plan is a defined benefitplan, which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employee based
on the length of servce and rates of pay.

Effective August 1, 1998, OMERS provided a temporary contribution holiday, with no employer
or employee pension contributions required until December 31 , 2002, as long as there is
sufficíent plan surplus. There wil be a review of the OMERS plan surplus each year to
determine whether the contribution holiday will continue. As a resi:lt, no amount was contributed
to OMERS for 2000 (1999 $ Nil) for current service.

Grant Thornton.
9
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Port Col borne Hydro Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2000

13. Industr restructunng (continued)

The Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 (Ontario) ("OEBAR) conferred on the Ontano Energy Bord
("OES') increased powers and responsibilties to regulate the elecricit industry. These powers
and responsibilities include the power to approve or fix rates for the transmission and distribution
of electricit, the power to provide continued rate protecion for rural and remote elecricity
consumers, and the responsibilty for ensuring that distributon companies fulfil obligations to
connect and service customers. The OEB may also prescribe license requirements and
conditions to electricit distributors, which may include among other things, speified accounting
records, regulatory accounting principles, separation of accounts for distinc businesses and
filing and process requirements for rate setting purpses.

Prior to the EA and OEBA, the former Ontario Hydro exercised regulatory control over the
electricity distribution secor through its powers under the Power Corpratin Act However, with
the implementation of the EA and OEBA, the Power Corporation Act was repealed and the
powers previously held by Ontario Hydro over electricit distribution secor were pased to theOEB. -
14. Subsequent event

On January 16, 2001 the City of Port Colbome signed a letter of intent wih Canadian Niagara
Power to lease the electricit distribution business for a ten year period for $ 14,500,00. The
lease is subject to the approval of the OEB.

Grant Thornton S
11
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Port Col borne Hydro-Electric Commission
Statement of Operations and Equity
for the year ended December 31 199 1998

Service revenue
Residential $ 5,34,802 $ 5,194,147
General 8,5,170 8,54,779
Large user 57,8S 21,046
Street lighting 134.508 134.361

14,09,337 13,894,333
Servce revenue adjustment (41.536) 38.898

14,051,801 13,933,231
Cost of power

Power purchased - Ontario Hydro 12.071,156 11.966.726

Gross margin on serice revenue 1,980,645 1,966,505

Other operating revenue 241.44 195.045

2W.088 2.161.550
Operating and maintenance expense

Distribution 48,2 427,083
Utilzation. 1.015 1.016

487,2 428.099

Biling and collecion 35,535 362,361
General administration expnse 385,425 345,293
Depreciation 554.617 537.780

1293.57 1.245.434

Income before financial expense 441,219 488,017

Financial expense
Interest 73.86 83.001

Net income
$ 367,352 $ 405,016

Equit
Beginning of year

$ 7,841,481 $ 7,436,465

Net income 36.352 405.016

End of year 
S 8,208,833 $ 7,841,481

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

Grat Thornton.
1
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Port Col borne Hydro-Electric Commission
Balance Sheet
December 31 1999 1998

Asets

Current
Cash
Accounts receivle

Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Land, buildings and equipment (note 2)

S 1,322,25 $ 743,21
1,672,60 1,721,280

58,920 623,020
24,282 28,218

3,605,043 3,115,719

8.733.466 8.804,462

S 12,33,509 $ 11,920,181

Liabilities

Current
Accounts payable and accruals
Long term debt payale wihin one year

Current portion of customers' deposit

S 1,340,363 $ 1,277,30
65,00 59,00
20.000 20.00

1,425,363 1,356,30

547,000 612,00

212,420 224,589

21.130 21,130

2.205.913 2.214.023

.8,208,83 7,841,481
1.923.763 1,864.677

10.132.596 9,706.158

S 12,338,509 $ 11,920,181

Long term debt (note 3)

Customers' depoit

Vested sick leave (note 4)

Equit
Utilit equit
Equit accumulated through contributed caitl

Contingency (note 6)

The accmpanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement

Grat Thornton. 3



~
Port Colborne Hydro-Electric Commission
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

3. Long Term Debt ~ 1998

Municipal debentures
Long term debt payable wihin one year

$ 612,00
65.00

$ 671,00
59.00

$ 547,00 $ 612,00

The debenture bears interest at 10.25% and matures in 200. Principal amounts payale on the
long term debt wiin each of the next five yers are as follows:

200
2001
2002
2003
20

$ 65,00
72,00
75,00
85,00
95,00

4. Uabillt for Vested Sick Leave Benefits

Under the revised sick leave benefit plan, all accumulated vested benefit are to be paid to
. eligible employees. Eamed sick time and it dollar value have ben frozen and transferred to a
separate accounl The accumulation of vesting pnvileges has been terminated.

This liailit has ben fully provied for in the financial sttements.

5. Pension Plans

The commission makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its staff. The plan is a defined benef~
plan which speñies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employee baed
on the length of seNice and rates of pay.

Effece August 1, 1998, OMERS provided a temporary contribution holiday, wih no employer
or employe pension contributns require until December 31, 2001, as long as there is
suficient plan surplus. There will be a review of the OMERS plan surplus each year to
determine whether the contribution holiday wil continue. As a result, no amount was contributed
to OMERS for 1999 (1998 $ 20,618) for currnt servce.

Grat Thornton. 5
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Port Col borne Hydro-Electric Commission
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

1. Summary of Signifcant Acunting Policie

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizle value.

Depreciation and Amortization

Rates of depreciation and amorttion applied to wrie-ff the cost of land, buildings and
equipment over their estimated lives on the straight-line method, are as follows:

Land rights
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles

2%
1.67%

3.33%-20%
12.5%-25%

Contrbuted capitl

Capital contributed by customers or developers towards the acquisition of assets is recrded as
equit accumulated through contriuted caital. The commission doe not record amortiztion
of contributed capit.

2. Land, Buildings and Equipment

Cost

~ 1998

Accumulated Net Net
Depreciation Book Value Book Value

$ 22,430 $ 75,070 $ 76,319
253,276 262,374 275,889

6,130,874 8,149,195 8,258,083
64,713 246,827 194,'71

$ 7,051,293 $ 8,733,466 $ 8,804,462

Lånd and land rights
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles

$ 97,500
515,650

14,280,069
891,54

$ 15,784,759

Grat Thornton. 4
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Port Col borne Hydro-Electric Commission
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

6. Contingency

A clas action suit claiming $ 500 milion in restitonary payments plus interest was served on
Toronto Hydro on November 18, 1999. The acton wa initiated against Toronto Hydro Electric
Commission as the representative of the Defendat Class consisting of all municipa elecric
utilities in Ontario which have charged late payment charges on overdue utilit bils at any time
after April 1, 1981.

The claim is tht late payment penaltes result in municipal elecric utlites receiving interest at
effecive rates in excess of 60% per year, which is ilegal under Secon 347(1 )(b) of the Criminal
Code.

The Municipal Electric Association is underting the defense of this class actn. At this time it
is not possible to quanti the effec, if any, on the financial statement of the Commission.
During the period in question the Commission charged $ 858,700 in late payment charges on
overdue utilit bills.

7. Industr Restrcturing

The Ontario Govemment enacted the Energ Competition Act, 1999 to introduce competition to
the Ontario elecricit market by the year 200. Under the terms of this legislation, the Ontario
Energy Board (the "DEB") will regulate industry participants by issuing licences for the right to
generate, transmit, distribute or retail elecricit. These licences will require compliance wih
establishing market rules and coes.

Pursuant to this legislation, the Municipalit of the Cit of Port Colbome, as owners of the
Commission, must enact a by-law by November 7, 200 to authorize the incorporation of one or
more companies created for the purpse of continuing the current distributing and retailng
actMties of the Commission. This by-law will also authorie the transfer of assets and liabilities
of the Commission to the applicable, newl created corprations.

8. Subsequent Event

Subsequent to December 31, 1999 the Commission was incorprated and the Cit of Port
Colbome was in the process of negotiating a $ 2.5 millon bank loan on behal of the new
corpration.

Grat Thornton. 6
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Auditors'Report

To the Commissioners, Members of Council, Inhabitnts and
Ratepayers of the Corpration of the Cit of Port Colbome

We have audited the baance sheet of the Port Colbome Hydro-Elecric Commission as at
December 31, 1999 and the statement of operations and equit and cash flow for the year then
ended. These financial sttements are the responsibilit of the utilits management. Our
responsibilit is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wi generally accepted auditing standard. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significa estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Port Colbome Hydro-Electric Commission as at December 31, 1999 and the results of its
operations for the year then ended in accordance wih the accounting principles prescribed for Ontri
Hydro-Elecric Commissions applied on a basis consistent wih that of the preceding year.

Port Colbome, Ontario
February 10, 2000

fl--~¿L¡;
Chartered Accountants

P. o. Box 336
Sule B .
92 Chene Street
Por Cobome
Onta
L3SW1
Tel: (90) 83361
Fax (90) 83-505
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.\~ at DccL'mha 3 i. 1000 Crl

1000
S

Assets

Current assets
C.ish
A.:coi;ms recei \.:i:iie
\-1::e:-:iis a:id sl.:Joiies. at a\"era~e cost
Pre;:aiè expenseš . -

13: w3 iO

:.311.066
90...9-:0
I ¡ 5.186

1999
S

i.:r.591
:.:i-..!13

8S-.50S
6:.6-(

3.961.591 .l...: 5.i S:

ltility plants (note 2)

Future income taxes
Accrued pension benefit asset (note 3)

43w5S 1.943

1.859.i:2

46.I..ó.23049AO~.257

39.58-+.510
::-.J86

1.819.042

Liabilties

"Current liabilities
.~ccounts oavab1e and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Due to parent (note 5)

1,2~9,8i4
77.220

8.315.098

2,28~,688
5;1.966

3.940.916

9,6..2,192 6, 79-:.5ïO

Sote payable to parent (note 5)
,:.Future income taxes
Accrued otJier retirement benefit liabilty (note 3)
Contributions in aid of construction .

l.tS20,811
~, - 49-':.: ." ¡

1,90-+,757
S9~.395

24.810.811

2.0l:.100
303:'89

2;.579.652 34.43.1.1iO

Shareholder"s Equity

Capital stock (nbte 4)
Retained earnings

21..:00.000
-+:~.605

; , - ~ . o,:ri. .;. .... '--21.g:~.505

11..:00.000
31: .9ÓO

1" . I . ""...~
-t).. -':._:1.."~9.~C,J.25-

-\ppro\ed by rht Board of Directors_'-/ /-~1- ¿ .-£ Dirctor ~4bJ
PRier- V~TERHOL5E(roPEPS aa
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r"rÇanadian :"iagara Power Inc.
V()tJlèl1è:1t of Eamings and Rètained Earnngs

for the ~c:ir ended December 31. 2000

Earnings for the year

Retained earnings - Beginning of year

Retained earnings - End of year

1000 1999
S S

21.065.063 1"+.-09.8-0

5.828.08S 3.J-l.:~3
11.185.664 8.151.312

240.803 ;..6.859
2.091.:ó- 1.: -9.902

19.345.822 12.949.416

L.ï19.241 1."'60.454

22.242 109,491

(l,245,566) 0,289.398)
(15 -; .249) (1-.238)

0.380.573) (1,197.145)

338.668 563.309

139,815 .FS.S35
86.208 (22-.486)

226.023 .. -, ~ '9-~.: .~-:

112,645 311.960

311.960

424.605 311.960

Operating re..enue

Expenses
Operating
Purchased power .
Other ta.xes
:~..rnonization

Operating earnings

Other income (expense)
Interest income
Interest expense
Other

Earnings before income taxes

Provision for income taxes
Current
Future

(JICrvVATERHOUSElPERS i



Canadian :' iagara Po\yer Inc.
5tJttmtnt \..t Cash Flov,.s
For the ~car cnded December 31.2000 -..

(06

:!ooo
S

1999
S

Cash flows from (used in)

Operating activities
Eami!2s for the vear
Items not atfecting cash

o-\rnor.ization
Future income taxes
Loss on sale of capital assets
Accrued pension benefit
Accrued post retirement benefit

Cash - End of the year

Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid durng the year for

Interest
L"lcome taxes

II :.6.l5 311.960

2.091.:6- 1.1 -9.902
5':'+.953 C2"7..S6)
1 !.. ~ '" 4-_a ~ _..~

( ..0.680) (l.50.000)
(lO-.3.l3)

2.'7'::.006 1.14.3"76

(593,653) 31:.0i4

(17.462) 104,425

(5:..516) (20,426)

(1,034,814) 1,530,520

(494,746) 571,966

4.374.182 4.283,974

2.180.991 6.83:.533

4.923.99: :.9.:6.909

(6.20-.6"75) (6.S28.ï63)
"76.85 ì

90.606 1:9.445

(6.040.218) (6.699.318)

(1,116.2:1) 1.247,591

1.:oi-:.59 i

131.3-0 1.:.l-.591

Change in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable
Materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Due to parent

Investing activities
Additions to utility plants
Proceeds on sale of capital assets
Increase in contributions in aid of constrction

Increase (decrease) in cash during the year

Cash - Beginning of year

1.363.109 1.:89.398
405.-92

PRicniiATERHousE(CDPERS i



t,. lCanadian :\iagara Power Inc.
\.:\otè: ti) Fin~nciJ.l St.:t~r:;çnb

Decemhcr .3 1. ~()OO

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

Incorporation

The Corporation. a wholly owned subsidiar of Canadian :\iagara Power Corrpany. Lirrüted. was :nco!'oratec
on Febn.lary 1 -. ~ 999 to comply with the Electricity Act. 1998 (Ontario) C"the Act"). The Act requires that the
ekctnc power tra"smission and distribution businesses: pre\.iously carred out by the parent COr7.pany. be
came¿ out in :i sqarare legal entity. EtÏective March 31. 1999. the Corporation purchased the e~ecr~c power

transmission and ;:isrr.bi.:ion assets of its parent company and commenced operations.

Ctilty plants

Utility plants are stated at cost. Amortization is provided over the estimated useful lives of the utility plants
using the straight-line method a.t a composite rate of 3.5% (1999 - 3.3%).

Contributions in aid of construction represent property. plant and equipment contributed by customers. These
accounts are being reduced annually by an amount equal to the charge for arIlonization provided on the
contributed portion of the assets involved.

Translation of foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities denomiated in foreign curencies are translated into Canadian dollars at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gais and losses on translation are included in the statement of
earnngs. Revenues and expenses denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at the
exchange rate pre\'ailing on the transaction date.

Employee benefit plans .

The Corporation accrues its obligations under employee benefit plans. The cost of pension benefits and other
retirement benetits earned by employees is actuarally determed using the projected benefn method pro-rated
on service and management"sbestestimte of discount rates, salary escalation. retirement ages of employees
and expected heahh care costs. Pension plan assets are valued at fair value. The excess of any cumulative net
actuarial gain (loss "I over 1 0°0 of the greater of ile benefit obligation and the fair \'alue of plan assets is

amortized over the average remaining sen'ice period of active employees.

Income taxes

The Corporation follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes, l-nde, ~h.s method
futue income ~ax ~sse~s and liabilities are recognzed for temporary differences be~ween the ~a"( and aCCOUI'lting

bases of asse~s a,.;: ¡iabi~ities. Futue tax assets and liabilities are measured 'Jsing enacted rates ex?ected to
apply t,-~ ~:i:\:ib¡e ~;"..;~me ::: the years in v."hich temporary differences are ex;:ected to be :-eco\e:-e.: or settled.

\ 1,

ÇJICE\VATERHOUSE(aJPERS ~



Canadian ."' iagara t'ower inc.
\:ùtèS to FininLial StJtèn1èntS

Dccemher 31. Z()OO
loS

C se of estima tes

The preparation of !Ìnancial statements in conformty with Canadian generally accepteè accountI.!1g pri::c:pies
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets anc
liabilities and disclosure of contingent amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts or revenues and expenses durng the reporting period. Actual results may vary from
the current estimates~ These estimates are reviewed periodically and. as adjustments become necessary. they
are reported in eargs in the period in which they become known.

Fair value of financial instruments

Short-tem financial instruments are valued at their caring amounts which are reasonable estimates for fair
values due to the relatively short period to matuty of the instrents. Ths approach applies to cash, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, income taxes payable, and due to related par. The
carring value of the note payable to parent is a reasonable estimate for fair value due to the floating interest
rate attached to it.

2 Utilty plants
2000

S
1999

S

Utility plants
Less: Accumulated amortiztion

59,971,ì72
16.389.829

54,09S.986
14.4140.466

43.581.943 39.684.5:0

(:)
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Canadian :\iagara Power Inc.
r rtf f"'\i~tèS to Fino.n-.i::! St::t=T1ènts
~.\..vDecembcr .3 1. ~OO()

.3 Employee future benefits

Th~ Corperitior. is a ;:ar.icipating ~mployei with its parent Canadian :\iaga:-a Power Company. Limiteè ir. 3
d-:rined benerii pensIor. plan and a derined benefit plan providing other retirement bene:its.

Information about the Corporation's defined beneIi.t plans as at December 31. 2000 is as follows:

Pension benefit plan Other retirement plan

2000 1999 2000 1999
S S S S

(8.725,923) (8,448,27;) (1,735.800) (2,012,100)
11.058.722 1 i.09.444

2.332.799 2.661. 67 (1.735.800) (2.012.100)

1.859.722 1.19.042 (1.904.757) (2.012.1001

6.75% 6% 7% 6°'..0

8% 8~"á

5~'ó 4°' 5~'o 4~.o..0

21 24 19 19

(13,133) 150,000 2,453
893.000 962.350 106.049

106.049

Accrued benefit asset (liabilty)
Accrued benetit obligation
F air value of plan assets

Funded status - plan surplus (deficit)

Accrued benefit asset (liabilty)

Significant assumptions used
Discount rate
Expected long-term rate of return on plan

assets
Rate of compensation increase
A verage remaining sen. ;ce period of active

employees (years)

Other information
;-et benefit expense for the year
Benefits paid
Contrbutions

4 Capital stock

The authorized and issued shares consist of 21 ,400.000 (1999 - 11.400,000) .:ommon shares without par value.
During th~ year. 10.000.000 cornan shares were issued for proceeds ofS10.000.000.

(: )
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January 19. :001

Auditors' Report

To the Shareholder of
Canadian Niagara Power Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Canadian Niagara Power Inc. as at December 31. 2000 and the
statements of eargs and retained earngs and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility ofthe Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
rinancial statements are free of material misstatement. .An audit includes exarrning. on a test basis,
eyidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and signficant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion. these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects. the financial position
of the company as at December 31, 2000 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

-t-RI
Chartered Accountants

Harrü!ton. Ontario

p"¡;~,, Ji~rhi'u..~,"'f':::' r::!::i- (( ih:: C.inadi:in linn of Pncew:il::rhnusi:,)opers LLP inll oih::r :n::moef' "!- !h:: """ridwIJ::
Pn..:.\\ J,icr¡-hlu~c: lH'Pi.~ iir~;jni~i,,)n
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:! i i-ing Street \I¡est
\1aln Floor

Hamilton Onwio
Canada LSP 'lW:

Telephone -I (905\ 777 7000
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January 21, :WOO

Auditors' Report

To the Shareholder of
Canadian Niagara Power Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Canadian Niagara Power Inc. as at December 31, 1999 and the
statements of earings and retained earnings and cash flows for the period then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion. these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the company as at December 31, 1999 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
period then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

() ¿.fP
Chartered Accountants

Ham i Iton. Ontario

Pricc:waierhl1useCùopers refers to the Canadian tirm or Pricew:iterhouseCoopers LLP and other members of the woridwide
PriccwuierhllUSeCùl1pers organizaiion.



Canadian Niagara Power Inc.
Balance Sheet

As at December 31. i 999
1-~

1999
S

Assets

Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable
Materials and supplies. at average cost
Prepaid expenses

1.247.591
2.217,4 I 3

887.508
62.670

Utilty plants (note 2)

Future income taxes
Accrued pension benefit asset (note 3)

4,4 15, I 82

39,684,520
227,486

1.819.042

46.146.230

Liabilties

Current liabilties
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Due to related part (note 5)

2,284,688
571,966

3.940.916

6,797,570

24,820.81 I
2.012,100

803.789

Note payable to parent (note 5)
Accrued other retirement benefit liabilty (note 3)
Contributions in aid of construction

34.434.270

Shareholder's Equity

Capital stock (note 4)
Retained earnings

i 1,400.000
3 I 1.960

i i. 7 i 1.960

46.146.230

Approved by the Board of Directors

Director Director

PRICEWATERHOUSE(roPERS ri



l? Canadian Niagara Power Inc.
Statement of Earnings and Retained Earnings
For the period ended December 31,1999

1999
S

Operating revenue 14.709.8ïO

Expenses
Operating
Purchased power
Other taxes
Amortization

3,471.343
8,151.1:

146.859
i. 79.902

12.949.416

Operating earnings i. 760.454

Other income (expense)
Interest income
Interest expense
Other

Earnings before income taxes

109,491

(1,289,398)
(17.238)

(1.97,145)

563.309

Provision for income taxes
Current
Future

478,835
(227.486)

251.349

Earnings for the period

Retained earnings - Beginning of period

Retained earnings - End of period

311.960

311.960

(JICEWATERHOUSE(PERS ri



Canadian Niagara Power Inc.
Statement of Cash Flovv.s
For the period ended December 31, 1999

N
1999

S

Cash flows from (used in)

Operating activities
Earnings for the period
Items not affecting cash

Amortization
Future income taxes
Accrued pension benefit

311,960

1,179.902
(227.486)
(150.000)

i. 14.376

Change in non-cash working capital
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in materials and supplies
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase in income taes payable
Increase in due to related par

312,074
104,425

(20,426)
1,580,520

571,966
4,283,974

6.832.533

7.946.909

Investing activities
Additions to utility plants
Increase in contributions in aid of construction

Increase in cash during the period

Cash - Beginning of period

Cash - End of the period

Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest
Income taxes

(6,828,763)
129.445

(6.699.318)

1.247,591

1.247.591

1,289.398

ÇJICEWATERHOUSE(aJPERS i



h Canadian Niagara Power Inc.
:t..ot~s to Financial StatementsDecem ber 3 i. i 999

i Summary of significant accounting policies

Incorporation

The Corporation. a wholly owned subsidiary of Canadian Niagara Power Company. Limited. was incorporated
on February i 7, i 999 to comply with the Electricity Act. 1998 (Ontario) ('he Act"). The Act requires that the
electric power transmission and distribution businesses. previously carried out by the parent company, be
carried out in a separate legal entity. Effective March 31, i 999. the Corporation purchased the electric power
transmission and distribution assets of its parent company and commenced operations.

Utilty plants

Utility plants are stated at cost. Amortization is provided over the estimated useful lives of the utility plants
using the straight-line method at a composite rate of:

Composite rate 3.3%

Contributions in aid of construction represent propert, plant and equipment contributed by customers. These
accounts are being reduced annually by an amount equal to the charge for amortization provided on the
contributed portion of the assets involved.

Translation of foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at the exchange
rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses on translation are included in the statement of
earnings. Revenues and expenses denominated in foreign 

currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at the

exchange rate prevailing on the transaction date.

Employee benefit plans

The Corporation accrues its obligations under employee benefit plans. The cost of pension benefits and other
retirement benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method pro-rated
on service and management's best estimate of discount rates, salary escalation. retirement ages of employees
and expected health care costs. Pension plan assets are valued at fair value. The excess of any cumulative net
actuarial gain (loss) over 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the fair value ofplari assets is
amortized over the average remaining service period of active employees.

Income taxes

The Corporation follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. (jnder this method
future income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the tax and accounting
bases of assets and liabilities. Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

( i )

PRICEWATERHOUSE(aJPERS i



Canadian Niagara Power Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

-=
Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may vary from the current
estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary. they are reported
in earnings in the period in which they become known.

2 Utilty plants

1999
$

Utility plants 54,098,986
Less: Accumulated amortization 14.414.466

39.684.520

3 Employee future benefits

The Corporation is a participating employer with its parent Canadian Niagara Power Company, Limited in a
defined benefit pension plan and a defined benefit plan providing other retirement benefits.

Information about the Corporation's defined benefit plans as at December 31, 1999 is as follows:

Pension
benefit

plan
1999

S

Other
retirement

plan
1999

$

Accrued benefit asset (liabilty)
Accrued benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

(8,.'l8.217)
i i. i 09 ,..l.l

(:!.O 12.1 00)

Funded status - plan surplus (deficit) 19.557.7:1 (:.012. i 00)

Accrued benefit asset (liabilty) L.819.0.e (:.012.100)

(2)
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)rf)
Canadian Niagara Power Inc.
NOi~S to Financial Stat~ments

Decem ber 3 i, i 999

Pension
benefit

plan
1999

S

Other
retirement

plan
1999

S

Significant assumptions used
Discount rate
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase
A verage remaining service period of active employees

6%
8%
4%

24 years

6%

19 years

Other information
Net benefit expense for the year
Benefits paid

Contri butions

150.000
962.350

4 Capital stock

The authorized and issued shares consist of 1 1,400,000 common shares without par value.

5 Related part transactions

During the year, the Corporation entered into the following transactions with its parent company,
Canadian Niagara Power Company, Limited:

1999
S

Revenues
Administrative service fees

Reimbursement of expenses

360.000

82.177

Expenses
Purchase of electric power

Management fees

8.151. i 2

225.000

Rent 648.585

127.017

i .289.398

Payroll charges

Interest on note payable

(3 )
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Canadian Niagara Po\ver Inc.
Notts to Financial Stattmtnts
December 31. 1999

m
These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at ¡he exchange amount. \vhich is
the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

On March 31. i 999. the Corporation purchased the net assets of 
the electric power transmission and

distribution businesses of its parent company for consideration of $36,220.811. In exchange. the Corporation
issued a note payable in the amount of $24,820.811 and capital stock in the amount of $11 .400.000. This
transaction was measured at the carring amount of 

the net assets previously recorded in the accounts of 
the

parent which was $36.220.811.

At the end of the year, the balances due to the Corporation's parent company are summarized as follows:

1999
S

Due to parent
3.940.916

Note payable to parent
24.820.811

The amount due to parent is subject to normal trade credit terms.

The note payable to parent bears interest at the Toronto-Dominion bankers' acceptance rate plus 1 % and is
payable on demand. The note payable is not anticipated to be repaid in the current year and has therefore been
classified as long-term.

6 Fair value of financial instruments

Short-term financial instruments are valued at their carrying amounts which are reasonable estimates for fair
values due to the relatively short period to maturity of 

the instruments. This approach applies to cash. accounts

receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. income taxes payable. and due to related parr.

The carrying value of the note payable to parent is a reasonable estimate for fair value due to the floating
interest rate attached to it.

7 Year 2000 Issue

The Year :WOO Issue arises because many computerized systems use two digits rather than four to identify a
year. Date-sensitive systems may recognize the year 2000 as 1900 or some other date. resulting in erròrs when
information using year :2000 dates is processed. In addition. similar problems may arise in some systems which
use certain dates in 1999 to represent something other than a date. Although the change in date has occurred. it
is not possible to conclude that all aspects of 

the Year :WOO Issue that may affect the Corporation. including

those related to customers. suppliers. or other third parties. have been fully resolved.

(4 )
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